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North Wildwood Board Of Education

1201 Atlantic Avenue }
North Wildwood, N.J. 08260
(609) 729-4649

December 5, 2011

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
City of North Wildwood School District
County of Cape May, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of North Wildwood Board of Education for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data
and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management
of the Board of Education. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is
accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial
position and results of operations of the various funds of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable
the reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections: Introductory, Financial,
Statistical and Single Audit. The Introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The Financial section includes the basic financial
statements and schedules, as well as the auditor's report thereon. The Statistical section includes
selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District is
required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of
1984 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations”, and the New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04, "Single Audit
Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid Payments". Information related to this
single audit, including the auditor's report on the internal contro! structure and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations and findings and recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this
report. '

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: The City of North Wildwood Board of Education is
an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the GASB Statement No. 14 as
established by NCGA Statement No. 3. All funds of the District are inciuded in this report. The
City of North Wildwood Board of Education and its school constitute the District's reporting entity.

Page 1




The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre K - 8.
These include regular, vocational as well as special education for handicapped students. The
District completed the 2010-2011 fiscal year with an average daily enroliment of 320. The
following details the changes in the student enroliment of the District over the last ten years.

Fiscal Student Percent

Year Enroliment Change_
2010-11 320.0 0.95%
2009-10 317.0 2.26%
2008-09 310.0 -1.90%
2007-08 316.0 6.76%
2006-07 296.0 -11.93%
2005-06 336.1 -7.36%
2004-05 362.8 -4.30%
2003-04 379.1 -6.00%
2002-03 403.3 -0.05%
2001-02 403.5 -3.91%

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: Our city continues to experience an increase of
tourists and an extended tourist year with festivals, parades and other additional activities. The
community continues to grow with an influx of new housing, renovations and additions to
property.

MAJOR INITIATIVES: The District provides instructional programs for pre-kindergarten through
eighth grade, which are supplemented with programs including library, technology, art, music,
applied technology, computers, gifted and talented, and basic skills.

The District continues to focus on New Jersey's Core Curriculum Content Standards and Cross-
Content and to align school programs with the benchmarks identified in the Standards. Language
Arts/Literacy, Mathematics, Science, Health and Physical Education, Visual and Performing Arts,
Social Studies and World Languages are reviewed as part of the multi-year curriculum review.
The District has expanded the technology curriculum and instruction to include the elementary
grades to meet the new Technology Literacy Standard. These important standards have both
curricular and financial support to anticipate student success on the state's NJ ASK and GEPA
assessment tests.

The District continues to focus on supportive programs to increase student involvement and
motivation. The District is a member of the Cape Atlantic Athletic League for extracurricular
offerings and to provide students with the opportunity to experience interaction outside the barrier
island.

Community and parental involvement are a primary focus of the Board and staff. The District
joined with the city government and service agencies to provide community service projects for
students. The District supported the local Home and School Association's initiatives to increase
educational opportunities for students and create more parental involvement.

We have a high commitment to our five-year technology plan, we purchased additional computers
for instructional purposes and an additional portable lab for more flexible classroom use.
Upgrading of the computer network and in-house teacher training are critical components to
maintaining staff and student use and value for technology
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INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of
the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse, and to ensure that adequate accounting data
are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are
met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control shouid not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District is also responsible for ensuring
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to
periodic evaluation by the District's Management.

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made periodically to determine the
adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to state financial
assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws
and regulations.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains
budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the
municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue
fund, and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital
improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended
for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a
line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as
reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated
are reported as reservations of fund balance as of June 30, 2011.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as promulgated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is
organized on the basis of funds. These funds are explained in the "Notes to the Financial
Statements”, Note 1.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION AT FISCAL YEAR END: As demonstrated by the various
statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the District continues to
meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION: At June 30, 2011, the District's outstanding debt issues included
$1,356,000.00 of general obligation bonds.

CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state
statute as detailed in "Notes to Financial Statements", Note 2. The District has adopted a cash
management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from
loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA
was enacted in 1980 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed
banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit funds only in
public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the
Act.
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RISK MANAGEMENT: North Wildwood Board of Education carries various forms of insurance,
including but not limited to general liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision,
hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, and fidelity bonds.

OTHER INFORMATION:

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Ford, Scott &
Associates, L.L.C., CPAs, was selected by the Board. [n addition to meeting the requirements
set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single
Audit Act of 1984 and the related OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04. The
auditor's report on the basic financial statements and combining and individual fund statements
and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The auditor's reports related
specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this report.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the City of North Wildwood Board of
Education for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the
school district and thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of
our financial operation. The preparation of this report could have not been accomplished without
the efficient and dedicated services of our financial and accounting personnel.

Respectfully submitted,

TMuchael Buccialia goﬁm y Hamaen
Michael Buccialia John J. Hansen
Superintendent Board Secretary/Business Administrator
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NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of North Wildwood School District's financial performance provides an
overall review of the School District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The
intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the School District's financial performance as a whole;
readers should also review the basic financial statements and notes to enhance their understanding of
the School District's financial performance.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2011 are as follows:
» In total, net assets increased $407,729.51, which represents a seven percent increase from 2010.

» General revenues accounted for $8,843,593.34 in revenue or 93 percent of all revenues.
Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services and operating grants and
contributions accounted for $699,569.26 or seven percent of total revenues of $9,543,162.60.

» The School District had $9,056,118.26 in expenses; only $634,451.21 of these expenses was
offset by program specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues
(primarily taxes) of $8,843,593.34 were adequate to provide for these programs.

» Among governmental funds, the General Fund had $8,615,831.82 in revenues and
$8,220,880.87 in expenditures. The General Fund's fund balance increased $394,950.95 from
2010.

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand North Wildwood School District as a financial
whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at
specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
whole School district, presenting both an aggregate view of the School district's finances and a longer-
term view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental
funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for
future spending. The fund financial statements also look at the School district's most significant funds
with all other non-major funds presented in total in one column. In the case of North Wildwood District,
the General Fund is by far the most significant fund.
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NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Reporting the School District as a Whole

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the School District to provide programs
and activities, the view of the School District as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the
question, "How did we do financially during 2011?" The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis
of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector businesses. This basis of accounting
takes into account all of the current year's revenues and expenses regardiess of when cash is received or
paid.

These two statements report the School District's net assets and changes in those assets. This change
in net assets is important because it tells the reader that, for the school district as a whole, the financial
position of the School district has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result
of many factors, some financial and some not. Non-financiat factors include the School District's property
tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility condition, required educational
programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the School District is divided into two
distinct kinds of activities:

» Governmental Activities - All of the School District's programs and services are reported here
including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil
transportation and extracurricular activities.

» Business-Type Activity - This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to
recover all the expenses of the goods or services provided. The Food Service enterprise fund is
reported as a business activity.

Reporting the School District's Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial reports provide detailed information about the School District's funds. The School District
uses many funds to account for a multitude of financial transaction. The School District's governmental
funds are the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund, and Debt Service Fund.

Governmental Funds

The School District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years. These
funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash
and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements
provide a detailed short-term view of the School district's general government operations and the basic
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps the reader determine whether there are more
or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.
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NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Reporting the School District's Most Significant Funds (Continued)

Enterprise Fund

The enterprise fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; therefore, these
statements are essentially the same.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the District-wide and fund financial statements.

The School District as a Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Assets provides the perspective of the School District as a whole. Net
assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position.

The District's financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net resuits of
activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the
depreciation of capital assets.

Table 1 provides a summary of the School! District's net assets for 2011 and 2010.

Table 1
Net Assets
2011 2010

Assets

Curmrent and Other Assets $ 2,717649.88 $ 2,410,039.82

Capital Assets 5,762,379.13 5,890,274.66

Total Assets 8,480,029.01 8,300,314.48
Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilites 1,554,249.81 1,709,299.98

Other Liabilities 444 385,21 517,350.02

Total Liahilities 1,998,635.02 2,226,650.00
Net Assets

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt 4,053,129.32 4,384,274.66

Restricted 2,184,374.41 1,666,062.68

Unrestricted 243,890.26 23,327 .14

Total Net Assets $ 6,481393.99 $ 6,073,664.48

The District's combined net assets were $6,481,393.99 on June 30, 2011. This was an increase of seven
percent from the prior year.
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NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

The School District as a Whole (Continued)

Table 2 shows changes in net assets for fiscal year 2011 and 2010.

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets
2011 2010

Revenues
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services $ 50,094.53 $ 50,645.26

Operating Grants and Contributions 699,569.26 641,689.52
General Revenues:

Property Taxes 6,486,632.00 6,413,740.00

Grants and Entitlements 1,067,000.91 1,167,681.87

Cther 1,289,960.43 956,571.73
Total Revenues 9,693,257.13 9,230,328.38
Program Expenses
Instruction 4,630,934.13 4,210,184.96
Support Servces:

Pupils and Instructional Staff 3,015,282.05 3,018,3%4.15

General and School Administration 530,822.47 523,016.21

Business and Other Support Services 696,208.58 694,323.48

Pupil Transportation 109,930.21 168,028.98
Interest on Debt 72,940.82 77,092.54
Food Service 129409.36 126,590.83
Total Expenses 9,185,527.62 8,817,631.15
Increase in Net Assets $ 40772951 $ 412,697.23

Governmental Activities

The unique nature of property taxes in New Jersey creates the legal requirements to annually seek voter
approval for the School District operations. Property taxes made up 68 percent of revenues for
governmental activities for the North Wildwood District for the fiscal year 2011. The District's total
revenues were $9,478,011.83 for the year ended June 30, 2011. Federal, state, and local grants
accounted for another 18 percent of revenue.
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NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the District's business-type activities (food service program) were comprised of charges for
services and federal and state reimbursements.

> Food service expenses exceeded revenues by $14,196.78.

» Charges for services represent $50,094.53 of revenue. This represents amounts paid by patrons
for daily food service.

» Federal and state reimbursement for meals, including payments for free and reduced lunches and
breakfast was $65,118.05.

Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost of services. The net
cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the District's taxpayers by each of these functions.

Table 3

Total Cost of Net Cost of Total Cost of Net Cost of
Services 2011 Services 2011 Services 2010 Services 2010

Instruction $ 463093413 $ 4,11805024 $ 421018496 $ 3,725,892.32

Support Services:
Pupils and Instructional Staff 3,015,282.05 2,893,714.73 3,018,394.15 2,919,946.20
General and Schoo Administration 530,822.47 530,822.47 523,016.21 523,016.21
Maintenance of Facilties 696,208.58 696,208.58 694,323.48 694,323.48
Pupil Transportation 109,930.21 109,930.21 168,028.98 168,028.98
Interest and Fiscal Charges 72,940.82 72,940.82 77,092.54 77,092.54
Total Expenses $ 9056,118.26 $ 842166705 $ 869104032 $ 8108,299.73

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the interaction
between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.

Pupils and instructional staff include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content and
process of teaching to students, inciuding curriculum and staff development.

General administration, school administration, and business include expenses associated with
administrative and financial supervision of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings, and equipment in
an effective working condition.
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NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Governmental Activities (Continued)

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, as
well as to and from school activities, as provided by State law.

Interest on debt involves the transactions associated with the payment of interest and other related
charges to debt of the School District.

"Other” includes special schools and unallocated depreciation.
The School District's Funds

All governmental funds (i.e., general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects, and debt service fund
presented in the fund-based statements) are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Total revenues amounted to $9,478,011.83 and expenditures were $9,075,717.90. The net
change in fund balance for the year was most significant in the General Fund, an increase of
$394,950.95.

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report,
the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following schedules
present a summary of the revenues of the governmental funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011,
and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior year revenues.

Increase Percent of
Percent of (Decrease) Increase
Revenue Amount Total from 2010 {Decrease)
Local Sources  $ 7,778,559.71 82.07% $ 544,530.05 7.53%
State Sources 1,330,020.64 14.03% (287,560.95) -17.78%
Federa Sources 369,431.48 3.90% 77,255.17 26.44%
Total $ 9,478,011.83 100.00% $ 334,224.27 3.66%

State revenues decreased by $287,560.95. The decrease in state revenue can be attributed to the
changes in state aid. Federal revenues increased by $77,255.17. Local revenues increased by
$544,530.05 mainly due to prior year tuition adjustments.

Page 16



NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

The School District's Funds (Continued)

The following schedule represents a summary of general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects, and
debt service fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, and the percentage of increases

and decreases in relation to prior year amounts.

Increase/ Percent of
Percent of (Decrease) Increase/
Expenditures Amount Total from 2010 (Decrease)
Current Expense:
Instruction $ 3,167,977.96 34.91% $ 1569,775.57 5.31%
Undistributed
Expenditures 5,325,711.54 58.68% 407,469.36 8.28%
Capital Outlay 351,442.58 3.87% 39,511.88 12.67%
Special Schools 10,200.00 0.1% (12,136.47) -54.33%
Charter Schools 0.00% (48,881.00) -100.00%
Debt Service 220,385.82 2.43% (3,181.72) -1.42%
Total $ 907571790 100.00% $ 542 557.62 -129.49%

Changes in expenditures were the results of varying factors.

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The School District's budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The most significant

budgeted fund is the General Fund.

Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times. Revisions in
the budget were made to recognize revenues that were not anticipated and to prevent over-expenditures

in specific line item accounts. Some of these revisions bear notation:

» The regular programs undistributed supplies increased due to a purchase of additional

educational supplies.

> Tuition to the special services school district was less than anticipated due to decreased

enroliment and tuition adjustments.
> Health benefits increased more than originally anticipated.
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NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

At the end of the fiscal year 2011, the School District had 5,762,379.13 invested in land, building, furniture
and equipment, and vehicles. Table 4 shows fiscal year 2011 balances compared to 2010.

Table 4
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30,
2011 2010
Land $ 474,00000 $ 474,000.00
Building and Building Improvements 5,094,165.31 5,225,123.07
Machinery and Equipment 194,213.82 191,151.59
Total $ 5762,379.13 $ 5,890,274.66

Overall capital assets decreased $204,911.17 from fiscal year 2010 to fiscal year 2011. For more detailed
information, please refer to the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2011, the School District had $1,709,249.81 of outstanding debt. Of this amount,
$353,249.81 is for compensated absences; and $1,356,000.00 of serial bonds for school construction.

Table 5
Outstanding Debt at June 30,
2011 2010
Compensated Absences $ 353,24981 $ 353,299.98
1999 General Obligation Bonds 1,356,000.00 1,506,000.00
Total $ 1,709,249.81 $ 1,859,299.98

At June 30, 2011, the School District was within its legal debt margin. For more detailed information,
please refer to the Notes to the F!nancial Statements and Schedule J-13.

For the Future

The North Wildwood School District is in good financial condition presently. The School District is proud
of its community support of the public schools. A major concern is the recent enrollment decline of the
District; however, if property values continue to grow the property tax rate should continue to decrease.
The state’s reliance on maximum appropriation of fund surplus for use in tax relief may jeopardize that
stabilization in the future. The decrease in enroliment may also cause a decrease in state funding. In
conclusion, the North Wildwood School District has committed itself to financial excellence for many
years. In addition, the School District's system for financial planning, budgeting, and internal financial
controls are well regarded. The School District plans to continue its sound fiscal management to meet
the challenges of the future.

Page 18



NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Contacting the School District's Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the School District's finances and to show the School District's accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact John J. Hansen,
Business Administrator/Board Secretary at City of North Wildwood Board of Education, 1201 Atlantic
Avenue, North Wildwood, NJ 08260, (609) 729-4649.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



DISTRICT WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the
District. These statements include the financial activities of the overall District, except for
fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal
activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities
of the District.



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables, Net

Internal Balances

Restricted Assets:
Capital Reserve Account
Maintenance Reserve Account
Tuition Reserve Account

Capital Assets, Net (Note 5)

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Due to Other Funds
Payable to State Government
Deferred Revenue
Noncurrent Liabilities (Note 6)
Due Within One Year
Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Restricted for;
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Other Purposes

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

A-1

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 1,864,436.41 $ 28,723.26 $ 1,893,159.67
231,690.00 - 231,690.00
11,015.61 - 11,015.61
51,046.65 51,046.65
368,741.85 368,741.85
161,996.10 161,996.10
5,762,379.13 - 5,762,379.13
8,451,305.75 28,723.26 8,480,029.01
11,922.31 - 11,922.31
26,555.00 26,555.00
1,496.90 1,496.90
60,148.89 60,148.89
189,262.11 189,262.11
155,000.00 155,000.00
1,554,249.81 1,554,249.81
1,998,635.02 - 1,998,635.02
4,053,129.32 - 4,053,129.32
51,046.65 51,046.65
(26,553.82) (26,553.82)
2,159,881.58 2,159,881.58
215,167.00 28,723.26 243,890.26
$ 6,452,670.73 $ 28,723.26 $ 6,481,393.99
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The individual fund financial statements present more detailed information for the individual
funds in a format that segregates information by fund type.



ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Due from Other Funds
Receivables from Other Governments
Restricted Cash & Cash Equivalents
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Payable to Other Governments
Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Restricted Fund Balance:

Reserved Excess Surplus -
Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditures

Reserve for Excess Surplus
Maintenance Reserve
Capital Reserve
Tuition Reserve for 2011-2012
Tuition Reserve for 2012-2013
Special Revenue Fund
Debt Service Fund

Committed Fund Balance:
Other Purposes
Assigned Fund Balance:
Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditures
Unassigned Fund Balance

Total Fund Balances

Tota! Liabilities and Fund Balances

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2011

B-1

Special Debt Total
General Revenue Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 1,857,076.13 $ 7,359.10 1.18 $ 1,864,436.41
9,518.71 1,496.90 11,015.61
- 231,690.00 231,690.00
581,784.60 581,784.60
$ 2,448,379.44 $  240,546.00 $ 1.18 $ 2,688,926.62
$ - $ 11,922.31 $ 11,922.31
1,496.90 1,496.90
60,148.89 60,148.89
10,804.31 178,457.80 189,262.11
12,301.21 250,529.00 - 262,830.21
424,151.04 424,151.04
766,277.09 766,277.09
368,741.85 368,741.85
51,046.65 51,046.65
81,996.10 81,996.10
80,000.00 80,000.00
(9,983.00) (9,983.00)
1.18 1.18
97,340.50 97,340.50
351,358.00 351,358.00
215,167.00 215,167.00
2,436,078.23 (9,983.00) 1.18 2,426,096.41
$ 2,448,379.44 $ 240,546.00 $ 1.18
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets (A-1) are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds.
The cost of the assets is $ 7,848,854.25 and the accumulated depreciation 5,762,379.13

is $2,086,657.12

Long-term liabilities, including bonds and capital lease payable, are not due
and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as
liabilities in the funds.

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities
is accrued, regardless of when due.

Net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement

(1,709,249.81)

(26,555.00)

$ 6,452,670.73
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REVENUES

Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy
Tuition
Interest
Restricted Miscellaneous
Miscellaneous

Total Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Regular instruction
Special Education Instruction
Other Special Instruction
Support Services:
Tuition

Student & Instruction Related Serv.

School Administrative Services
Other Administrative Services
Plant Operation and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Employee Benefits

Transfer to Charter Schools

Special Schools

Capital Outlay

Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer out
Transferin
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses
Net Changes in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - July 1

Fund Balance - June 30

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOQOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

B-2

Special Debt Total
General Revenue Service Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 6,266,245.00 220,387.00 $ 6,486,632.00
1,230,154.00 1,230,154.00
4,499.42 4,499.42
12,028.37 12,028.37
43,245.92 2,000.00 45,245.92
7,556,172.71 2,000.00 220,387.00 7,778,559.71
1,059,659.11 270,361.53 1,330,020.64
369,431.48 369,431.48
8,615,831.82 641,793.01 220,387.00 9,478,011.83
1,969,524.94 1,969,524.94
394,703.74 512,883.89 907,587.63
290,865.39 290,865.39
1,684,552.83 1,684,552.83
896,168.24 121,567.32 1,017,735.56
57,020.30 57,020.30
351,401.57 351,401.57
585,246.22 585,246.22
109,930.21 109,930.21
1,519,824.85 1,619,824.85
10,200.00 10,200.00
351,442.58 351,442.58
220,385.82 220,385.82
8,220,880.87 634,451.21 220,385.82 9,075,717.90
394,950.95 7,341.80 1.18 402,293.93
394,950.95 7,341.80 1.18 402,293.93
2,041,127.28 (17,324.80) - 2,023,802.48
$ 2,436,078.23 $ (9,983.00) $ 1.18 $ 2,426,096.41

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Total Net Change in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds (from B-2) $ 402,293.93

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
However, on the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlays in
the current fiscal year.
Depreciation expense $ (156,835.54)
Capital Outlays 23,830.01

(133,005.53)

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the
statement of activities. 150,000.00

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses,
e.g., compensated absences (vacations) are measured by the
amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds,
however, expenditures for these items are reported in the amount
of financial resources used (paid). When the earned amount
exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the
recongiliation (-); when the paid amount exceeds the earned
amount, the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+). 50.17

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued,
regardiess of when due. In the governmental funds, interest is
reported when due. The accrued interest is a deduction in
the reconciliation. 2,555.00

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 421,893.57

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement Page 24



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Fund
Food
Service Totals

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 28,723.26 $ 28,723.26
Interfund Accounts Receivable -
Accounts Receivable -
Total Current Assets 28,723.26 28,723.26

Noncurrent Assets:
Furniture, Machinery & Equipment 2,089.00 2,089.00
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (2,089.00) (2,089.00)
Total Noncurrent Assets - -

Total Assets $ 28,723.26 $ 28,723.26

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ - $ -

Total Current Liabilities - -

Noncurrent Liabilities:
None - -

Total Noncurrent Liabilities - -

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets Net of
Related Debt -
Unrestricted 28,723.26 28,723.26

Total Net Assets $ 28,723.26 $ 28,723.26

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement Page 25



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Fund

Food Totals
Service Enterprise
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services:
Daily Sales $ 50,094.53 $ 50,094.53
Total Operating Revenue 50,094.53 50,094.53
Operating Expenses:
Cost of Sales 86,357.70 86,357.70
Salaries 28,567.50 28,567.50
Employee Benefits 11,387.76 11,387.76
General Supplies 3,096.40 3,096.40
Total Operating Expenses 129,409.36 129,409.36
Operating Income (Loss) (79,314.83) (79,314.83)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
State Sources:
State School Breakfast Program - -
State School Lunch Program 1,459.11 1,459.11
Federal Sources:
National School Breakfast Program 6,991.20 6,991.20
National School Lunch Program 56,667.74 56,667.74
Interest and Investment Income 32.72 32.72
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 65,160.77 65,150.77
Income (Loss) before Contributions & Transfers (14,164.06) (14,164.06)
Transfers In (Out) - -
Changes in Net Assets (14,164.06) (14,164.06)
Total Net Assets - Beginning 42,887.32 42,887.32
Total Net Assets - Ending $ 28,723.26 3 28,723.26

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement Page 26



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Fund

Food Totals
Service Enterprise
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers $ 50,094.53 $ 50,094.53
Payments to Employees (28,567.50) (28,567.50)
Payments for Employee Benefits (11,387.76) (11,387.76)
Payments for Supplies (89,454.10) (89,454.10)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating
Activities (79,314.83) (79,314.83)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Sources 1,717.73 1,717.73
Federal Sources 69,513.43 69,513.43
Operating Subsidies and Transfers to Other Funds -
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Noncapital 11,816.14
Financing Activities 83,047.30 71,231.16
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and Dividends 32.72 32.72
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing
Activities 32.72 32.72
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalents 3,765.19 3,765.19
Balance - Beginning of Year 24.958.07 24 958.07
Balance - End of Year 3 28,723.26 $ 28,723.26

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $ (79,314.83) - $ (79,314.83)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income(Loss) to
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating
Activities:
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable -
Total Adjustments - -
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating
Activities $ (79,314.83) - $ (79,314.83)

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement Page 27



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

B-7

Unemployment Private Purpose Agency
Compensation Scholarship Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,368.33 $ 357.00 $ 17,548.58
Total Assets 4,368.33 357.00 17,548.58
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 822.25
Interfund Payable 4,999.33
Payable to Student Groups 12,531.23
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 18.02
Total Liabilities 822.25 - $ 17,548.58
NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for Unemployment
Claims and Other Purposes $ 3,546.08
Reserved for Scholarships $ 357.00

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Unemployment Private Purpose
Compensation Scholarship Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions $ 6,457.41 $ -
Board Contribution 5,183.04
Total Contributions 11,640.45 -
Investment Earnings:
Interest 3.14
Less: Investment Expense
Net Investment Earnings - 3.14
Total Additions 11,640.45 3.14
DEDUCTIONS
Unemployment Claims 9,764.40
Scholarship Awards 500.00
Total Deductions 9,764.40 500.00
Changes in Net Assets 1,876.05 (496.86)
Net Assets - Beginning of the Year 1,670.03 853.86
Net Assets (Deficit) - End of the Year 3 3,546.08 $ 357.00

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement Page 29



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of City of North Wildwood School District
(District) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Board's accounting policies are described
below.

A. Reporting Entity

The District is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an educational
institution. The Board consists of elected officials and is responsible for the fiscal control of the District. A
superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.
The purpose of the district is to educate students in grades K-8. The District operates a combined
elementary and middle school located in the City of North Wildwood.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section
2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is
whether:

the organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name),

the District holds the corporate powers of the organization;

the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board;

the District is able to impose its will on the organization;

the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the District;
there is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the District;

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units.

B. Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Basis of Presentation

The School District's basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements (i.e. statement of net
assets and a statement of activities) and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed leve! of
financial information.

District-Wide Financial Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display
information about the district as a whole. These statements report the financial activities of the overall
District, except for fiduciary activities. Individual funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish
governmental activities, generally supported by property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other
non-exchange transactions from business-type activities, generally financed in whole or in part with fees
charged to external parties.
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CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

B. Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting - Continued

Basis of Presentation - Continued

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-type
activity of the School District at fiscal year end. The statement of activities presents a comparison
between direct expenses and program revenues for the business-type activity of the District and for each
function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Program revenues include (a) charges and fees paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the
programs; and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including
taxes, are presented as general revenues. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues
identifies the extent to which each governmental function or business segment is self-financing, or draws
from the general revenues of the School District.

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the School District segregates transactions related to
certain School District functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to
demonstrate legal compliance. The fund financial statements provide information about the District's
funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented. The New Jersey Department of Education (‘Department’) has
elected to require New Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in accordance
with the option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The Department believes that the presentation of
all funds as major is important for public interest and to promote consistency among district financial
reporting models.

Governmental Funds

The District reports the following governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to
account for all expendable financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or non-
instructional equipment, which are classified in the capital outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes budgeted
capital outlay in this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles, as they pertain to
governmental entities, state that general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital
outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived
exclusively from unrestricted revenues. Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are
normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district taxes and appropriated fund balance.
Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or additions to fixed assets for land,
existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling
of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred from
and to Current Expense by board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of
specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.
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CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

B. Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting - Continued

Basis of Presentation - Continued

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all financial resources to
be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by
Proprietary Funds). The financial resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds
that are specifically authorized by the voters as a separate question on the ballot either during the
annual election or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources
for, and the payment of, principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property
acquisition, construction and improvement programs.

Proprietary Funds

The District reports the following proprietary fund:

Enterprise Funds — Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business operations — where the intent of the District is
that the costs of providing goods or services be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges.

The District's Enterprise Fund is comprised of the Food Service Fund, which accounts for all
revenues and expenses pertaining to the District’s cafeteria operations.

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds - The Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by
the District in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other
governments and/or other funds.

Expendable Trust Fund - An Expendable Trust Fund is accounted for in essentially the
same manner as the governmental fund types, using the same measurement focus and
basis of accounting. Expendable Trust Funds account for assets where both the principal
and interest may be spent. Expendable Trust Funds include the Unemployment
Compensation Fund.

Nonexpendable Trust Fund - A Nonexpendable Trust Fund is used to account for assets
held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, whereby the District is under obligation
to maintain the trust principal.  The District maintains the Scholarship Fund as a
Nonexpendable Trust Fund.

Agency Funds — Agency funds are used to account for the assets that the District holds
on behalf of others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not
involve measurement of results of operations. Agency funds include payroll and student
activities funds.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

B. Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting - Continued

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on
the financial statements.

The District-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary fund and the fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year in
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) are
used as a practical measure of economic resources and the operating statement includes all transactions
and events that increased or decreased net assets. Depreciation is charged as expense against current
operations and accumulated depreciation is reported on the statement of net assets.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For
this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available is they are collected within 60 days of the
end of the fiscal year. Revenue from federal, state and other grants designated for payment of specific
school district expenditures is recognized when the related expenditures are incurred; accordingly, when
such funds are received, they are recorded as deferred revenues until earned. Expenditures generally
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments are
recorded only when payment is due.

The District applies only those applicable pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting and reporting for its proprietary operations.

C. Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue,
and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval and are voted upon
at the annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are prepared using the modified
accrual basis of accounting, except for special revenue funds. The legal level of budgetary control is
established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most
specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C.
BA:23-2.2(g). All budget amendments/transfers must be approved by School Board resolution. All
budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information refiect the original budget
and the amended budget (which have been adjusted for legally authorized revisions of the annual
budgets during the year.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

C. Budgets/Budgetary Control - Continued

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances and unexpended grant
appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The capital projects fund presents the remaining
project appropriations compared to current year expenditures.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device
during the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary
basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of the legally
mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary purposes only and the special
revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal
budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year
end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary
basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary
basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the
GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of
GAAP basis financial reports.

D. Encumbrance Accounting

Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure
of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in
governmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as reservations of fund balances at
fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related to
unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received advances are
reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made at
the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the
outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.

E. Assets, Liabilities and Equity

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, bank deposits and all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus
accrued interest. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one
year or less when purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions

they may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be
purchased by New Jersey school districts.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

E. Assets, Liabilities and Equity - Continued
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments - Continued

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in
public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection
Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental units from a loss of funds on
deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units.
The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless
such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include savings and loan
institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which are federally
insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five
percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental
Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public
depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the governmental units.

Interfund Transactions

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the District-wide statements are
reported in the same manner as general revenues.

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Filows of cash or goods from one fund to another without
a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other
financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after non-operating revenues/expenses in the
Enterprise Fund. Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds
that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial statements.

Inventories
Inventories, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund, are recorded as expenditures during the
year of purchase. Inventories in the Enterprise Fund are recorded at cost, computed on a first-in, first out

method. In the fund based financial statements, commodities received from the U.S. Department of
Agriculture are recorded as deferred revenue until consumed.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

E. Assets, Liabilities and Equity - Continued
Capital Assets

The District has established a formal system of accounting for its capital assets. Purchased or
constructed capital assets are reported at cost. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do
not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. The capitalization
threshold used by school districts in the State of New Jersey is $2,000.

All reported capital assets except for land and construction in progress, are depreciated. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives vary from 20 to 50
years for land improvements and buiidings, and 5 to 15 years for equipment.

The District does not possess any material amounts of infrastructure capital assets, such as sidewalks
and parking lots. Such items are considered to be part of the cost of buildings or other improvable
property.

Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused sick, vacation leave) as directed by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for Compensated
Absences”. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered, and
that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, is
accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future
services, or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its
employees, are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events
take place.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the
District's personnel policies. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. The District's
policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount to
subsequent years. Upon retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in
accordance with the District's agreements with the various employee unions.

The liability for compensated absences was accrued using the termination payment method, whereby the
liability is calculated based on the amount of sick leave that is expected to become eligible for payment
upon termination. The District estimates its accrued compensated absences liability based on the
accumulated sick and vacation days at the balance sheet date by those employees who are currently
eligible to receive termination payments.

For the District-wide Statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to be used in the following
year. In accordance with GAAP, for the governmental funds, in the Fund Financial Statements, all of the
compensated absences are considered long-term and therefore, are not a fund liability and represents a
reconciling item between the fund level and District-wide presentations.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

E. Assets, Liabilities and Equity - Continued

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been
satisfied. Grants and entitlements received in the Special Revenue Fund before they have been earned
are recorded as deferred revenue.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported on the District-wide financial
statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that once incurred are paid in
a timely manner and in full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the funds.
However, contractually required pension contributions and compensated absences that are paid from
governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the fund financial statements only to the extent that they
are due for payment during the current year. Bonds are recognized as a liability on the fund financial
statements when due.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets,
net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use, either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the School District, or through external restrictions imposed
by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The School District's policy is to first
apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net assets are available.

Fund Balance Reserves

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the District classified governmental fund balances as follows;

* Non-spendable - Includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in
spendable form or because of legal or contractual restraints.

¢ Restricted — Includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are
externally imposed by providers such as creditors or amounts constrained due to constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

¢ Committed ~ Includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are
internally imposed by the government through formal action of the highest leve! of decision
making authority and does not lapse at year end.

e Assigned — Includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes that

are neither considered restricted or committed. Fund Balance may be assigned by the Board of
Education, Superintendent or Business Administrator.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

E. Assets, Liabilities and Equity - Continued

Fund Balance Reserves - Continued

¢ Unassigned — Includes positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been
classified within the above mentioned categories and negative fund balances in other
governmental funds.

Revenues — Exchange and Nonexchange Transactions

Revenues resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal
value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis,
revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Available means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year, or are expected to be
collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District,
available means within sixty days of the fiscal year end.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly giving equal value
in return, include property taxes, grants, entittements and donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from
property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from income taxes
is recognized in the period in which the income is earned. Revenue from grants, entitlement, and
donations is recognized in the period in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be
used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the School District
must provide local resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which
the resources are provided to the School District on a reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual
basis, revenue from nonexchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable
and available at fiscal year end: property taxes as an advance, interest and tuition.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the
enterprise fund. For the School District, these revenues are sales for food service. Operating expenses
are necessary costs incurred to provide the service that is the primary activity of the enterprise fund.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are
those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect expenses are allocated to functions but are
reported separately in the Statement of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer’s share of
social security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated based on salaries
of that program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is specifically identified by function and is
included in the direct expense column of the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not
be attributed to a specific function is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the
Statement of Activities. Interest on long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported
separately on the Statement of Activities.

Page 38



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

E. Assets, Liabilities and Equity - Continued

Extraordinary and Special ltems

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence.
Special items are transactions or events that are within control of management and are either unusual in
nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions occurred during the fiscal year.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues
and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

The District's deposits are insured through either the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or
New Jersey's Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA requires all banks doing
business in the State of New Jersey to maintain additional coilateral in the amount of 5% of the average
public deposits and to deposit these amounts with the Federal Reserve Bank for all deposits not covered
by FDIC.

Bank balances are insured up to $250,000.00 in the aggregate by the FDIC for each bank. Operating
cash, in the form various checking, savings and certificates of deposit, are held in the District's name by
commercial banking institutions. At June 30, 2011, the carrying amount of the District's deposits was
$2,497,153.00 and the bank balance was $2,568,034.79. Of the bank balance, $10,955.14 was
uninsured and uncollateralized.

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 40, “Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures” (*“GASB 40"), the
District's bank accounts are profiled in order to determine exposure, if any, to Custodial Credit Risk (risk
that in the event of failure of the counterparty the District would not be able to recover the value of its
deposits or investment). Deposits are considered to be exposed to custodial credit risk if they are:
uncollateralized (securities not pledged to the depositor), collateralized with securities heid by the
pledging financial institution, or coliateralized with securities held by the financial institution’s trust
department or agent but not in the government’s name. The District does not have a policy for custodial
credit risk.

Investments

The District had no investments at June 30, 2011.
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NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2011, consisted of interfunds receivable and intergovernmental receivables. All
receivables are considered collectible in full. A summary of the principal items of intergovernmental

receivables follows:

Government

Govemmental
Fund
Financia
Statements
State and Federal Aid $ 231,690.00 $
interfund 11,015.61
Gross Receivables 242 705.61
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles
Total Receivables, Net $ 24270561 $

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES

Transfers between funds are used to (1) move investment income earned in the Capital Projects Fund
that is required to be expended in the Debt Service Fund; (2) repay expenses paid by another fund; and

(3) make a Board contribution to the Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund.

The following interfund balances remained on the fund financial statements at June 30, 2011:

Interfund
Fund Receivable
General Fund $ 951871 $
Special Revenue Fund 1,496.90
Food Service Enterprise Fund
Trust and Agency Fund
Total $ 11,01561 $

The general fund receivable is comprised of two interfunds. The first one is due from the food service
fund in the amount of $4,519.38 which is a result of the general fund’s transfer to food service for the
June subsidy reimbursement which was not received by the district at year end. The second one of
$4,999.33 is a result of the interest and other miscellaneous items that are due from the payroll agency
such as voided checks. The general fund interfund payable consists of $1,496.90 that is due to the

special revenue fund for IDEA Preschool funds.
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets,not being depreciated:

Land $ 474,000.00 $ $ $ 474,000.00
Total capital assets not being depreciated 474,000.00 - - 474,000.00
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 6,871,620.43 6,871,620.43

Machinery & Equipment 476,339.95 28,940.00 (2,046.13) 503,233.82
Total capital assets being depreciated at

historical cost 7,347 ,960.38 28,940.00 (2,046.13) 7,374,854.25
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (1,646,497.37) (130,957.76) (1,777,455.13)

Equipment (285,188.35) (25,877.77) 2,046.13 (309,019.99)
Total capital assets being depreciated,

net of accumulated depreciation 5,416,274.66 (127,895.53) - 5,288,379.13
Governmental activity capital assets, net $ 5,890,274.66 $ (127,895.53) $ - $ 5,762,379.13
Business-type activities:

Capital assets being depreciated:

Equipment $ 2,089.00 $ $ $ 2,089.00

Less accumulated depreciation (2,089.00) (2,089.00)
Enterprise Fund capital assets, net $ - 8 - § - $ -

Depreciation expense is charged to governmental functions as follows:

Regular Instruction $ 66,825.39
Special Education 31,003.43
Other Special Instruction 9,936.04
Student & Instruction Related Service 34,766.11
School Administrative Services 1,952.17
Business & Other Support Services 12,003.97
Special Schools 348.43

$ 156,835.54
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NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2011 are as follows:

Amounts Due
Balance Issues or Payments or Balance Within
June 30, 2010 Additions Expenditures June 30, 2011 One Year
Compensated Absences  $ 353,2990.98 $ $ 5017 $ 353,249.81 § -
Bonds Payable 1,506,000.00 150,000.00 1,356,000.00 155,000.00
$ 1,859,299.98 $ - $ 150,05017 $ 1,709,24981 $ 155,000.00

Compensated absences and capital leases have been liquidated in the General Fund.

Bonds Payable

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality through referendums.
All bonds are retired in serial instaliments within the statutory period of usefuiness. Bonds issued by the
District are general obligation bonds.

At June 30, 2011, bonds payable consisted of the following issues:

$2,821,000.00 General Improvement Bonds, dated January 1, 1999, due in annual installments through
February 2, 2019, bearing interest at varying rates. The balance remaining as of June 30, 2011 is
$1,356,000.00.

Debt service requirements on serial bonds payable at June 30, 2011 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total

- 2012 $ 155,000.00 $ 63,448.76 § 218,448.76
2013 155,000.00 56,280.00 211,280.00
2014 160,000.00 49,111.26 209,111.26
2015 165,000.00 41,711.26 206,711.26

2016-2019 721,000.00 86,860.00 807,860.00

$ 1,356,00000 § 297,411.28 $ 1,663,411.28

Capital Leases

As of June 30, 2011, the Board had no capital lease obligations.
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NOTE 7 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The District receives support from federal government and from the state government. A significant
reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, would have an effect on the District's programs and
activities.

NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public Employees'
Retirement System or the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund which have been established by state
statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to
the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will be assumed by the
State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a publicly available financial
report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for the Public
Employees Retirement System and the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may be
obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625.

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) - The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund was established
as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death,
disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund is
considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special funding situation, as under current
statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the
system's other related non-contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all
teachers or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, and employees
of the Department of Education who have titles that are unclassified, professional and certified.

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) - The Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) was
established as of January 1, 1955 under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death,
disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees' Retirement System is
a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is mandatory for substantially all full-time employees
of the State of New Jersey or any county, municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the
employee is not required to be a member of another state-administered retirement system or other state
or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) - The Defined Contribution Retirement Program
(DCRP) was established as of July 1, 2009 under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2009 and Chapter
103, P.L. 2009 (N.J.S.A. 43:15C-1 et seq.). The DCRP is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
contribution pension fund. The DCRP provides eligible members, and their beneficiaries with a tax-
sheltered, defined contribution retirement benefit, along with life insurance and disability coverage.
Vesting and benefit provisions are established by N.J.S.A. 43:15C-1 et. seq.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by state statute. In accordance with
Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007, plan members are required to contribute 5.5% of their
annual covered salary. The State Treasurer has the right under current law to make temporary
reductions in member rates based on the existence of surplus plan assets in the retirement system;
however statute also requires the return to the normal rate when such surplus pension assets no longer
exist. In addition to the employee contributions, the School District’s contribution amounts for each pay
period are required to be transmitted to Prudential Financial not later than the fifth business day after the
date on which the employee is paid for that pay period. The School District has no employees enrolled in
the Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.
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NOTE 8 — PENSION PLANS - Continued

Vesting and Benefit Provisions - The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A
and 43.3B, and N.J.S.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All benefits vest after eight to ten years of service, except for
medical benefits that vest after 25 years of service. Retirement benefits for age and service are available
at age 60 and are generally determined to be 1/60 of the final average salary for each year of service
credit, as defined. Final average salary equals the average salary for the final three years of service prior
to retirement (or highest three years' compensation if other than the final three years).

Members may seek early retirement after achieving 25 years of service credit or they may elect deferred
retirement after achieving eight to ten years of service in which case benefits would begin the first day of
the month after the member attains normal retirement age. The TPAF and PERS provides for specified
medical benefits for members who retire after achieving 25 years of qualified service, as defined, or under
the disability provisions of the System. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and,
after three years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions.
In the case of death before retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the
members' accounts.

Significant Legislation - During the year ended June 30, 1997, legislation was enacted (Chapter 114, P.L.
1997) that changed the asset valuation method from market related value to full-market value. This
legislation also contained a provision to reduce the employee contribution rate by 1/2 of 1% to 4.5% for
calendar years 1998 and 1999, and to allow for a reduction in the employee's rate after calendar year
1999, providing excess valuation assets are available. The legislation also provided that the Districts'
normal contributions to the Fund may be reduced based on the revaluation of assets.

Contribution Requirements - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A, Chapter 62, P.L. of 1994,
Chapter 115, P.L. of 1997 and N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active members and
contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New
Jersey legislation. TPAF and PERS provides for employee contributions of 5.5% of employees’ annual
compensation, as defined. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments,
noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement medical premiums. Under current statute the District
is a non-contributing employer of the TPAF.

The School District's contributions to TPAF for the years ending June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $0,
$0, and $0 respectively, and normally paid by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the board. The State
of New Jersey did not make the required contributions for the last three years. The School District's
contributions to PERS for the years ending June 30, 2011, 2010, 2009 were $72,018.00, $62,345.00, and
$53,772.69 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the State of New Jersey contributed
$208,503.00, $210,172.00, and $212,353.00, respectively, to the TPAF for post-retirement medical
benefits on behalf of the Board. Also, in accordance with NJSA 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey
reimbursed the Board $239,131.91, $239,114.87, and $227,374.41 during the same fiscal years for the
employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members as calculated on their base salaries.
These amounts, which are not required to be budgeted, have been included in the financial statements,
and the combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules as revenues and
expenditures in accordance in GASB 27.
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NOTE 9 - POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The School District contributes to the New Jersey State Health Benefits Program (“the SHBP"), a cost
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit post-employment healthcare plan administered by the State of
New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. SHBP provides medical, prescription drug, mental
health/substance abuse and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered dependents.
The State Health Benefits Program is found in the New Jersey Statutes Annotated, Title 52, Article 17.25
et seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9
of the New Jersey Administrative Code. The Division of Pension and Benefits issues a publicly available
financial report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for the
Public Employees Retirement System and the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may
be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey,
08625.

Chapter 384 of Public Laws 1987 and Chapter 6 of Public Laws 1990 required TPAF and PERS,
respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after
accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. P.L. 2007, ¢.103 amended the law
to eliminate the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired state employees
through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and
payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired state employees and retired educational
employees. As of June 30, 2010, there were 87,288 retirees eligible for post-retirement medical benefits.
The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State in accordance with P.L. 1994,
¢.62. Funding of post-retirement medical premiums changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go
basis beginning in fiscal year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 ¢. 126, which provides free health
benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education or
county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $126.3 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for
14,050 eligible retired members in fiscal year 2010.

NOTE 10 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The liability for vested compensated absences for the governmental fund types is recorded in current and
long-term liabilities. The current portion of the compensated absences balance of the governmental
funds is not considered material to the applicable funds total liabilities, and therefore is not shown
separately from the long-term liability of compensated absences.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those funds
as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2011, no liability existed for compensated absences
in the Food Service Enterprise Fund.

NOTE 11 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The District offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by various third-party service
organizations, permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred
under the plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable
emergency.
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NOTE 12 - CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by City of North Wildwood Board of Education on
September 25, 2000 for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent
fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in
the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the district's approved
Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may
increase the balance in a capital reserve by appropriating funds in the general fund budget certified for
taxes. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has
been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of four special
elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-2.13(g) 7, the balance in
the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its
LRFP.

Beginning balance, July 1, 2010 $ 4879429
Interest eamings 252.36
Deposits - Budgeted 2,000.00
Budgeted Withdrawals -

Ending balance, June 30, 2011 $ 51,046.65

NOTE 13 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property,
liability and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical
Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected to fund its New Jersey
Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method". Under this plan,
the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts
due to the State. The following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions,
reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the ending balance of the District's expendable trust
fund for the current and prior year:

Fiscal District Employee Amounts Ending

Year Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Baiance
2010-2011 $ 1,70267 $ 99563 $ 82225 $ 3,546.08
2009-2010 6010.63 5,273.35 8,635.38 1,670.03
2008-2009 - 11,110.29 12,404.61 (1,078.57)
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NOTE 14 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Federal and State Grants

The District participates in a number of federal and state grant programs. The grant programs are subject
to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The District is potentially liable for
expenditures which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant programs. Management is
not aware of any material items of noncompliance would result in the disallowance of program
expenditures.

NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS

The District does not have encumbrance policy for the fiscal year end to determine significant
encumbrances. All encumbrances are classified as either Assigned Fund Balance in the General Fund.
Significant encumbrances at June 30" are as follows;

Fund Amount
General Fund Encumbered Orders $ 97,340.50
$ 97,340.50

NOTE 16 - FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

Restrictions of funds balances of governmental funds are established to either (1) satisfy legal covenants
that require a portion of the fund balance to be segregated or (2) identify the portion of the fund balance
that is not appropriate for future expenditures.

The District uses restricted/committed amounts to be spent first when both restricted an unrestricted fund
balance is available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing this, such as a grant
agreement requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the District does not have a formal fund
balance spending policy therefore the default spending order requires committed, assigned and then
unassigned to be used be spent first when expenditures are made.

The District follows the State of New Jersey's minimum fund balance policy for New Jersey Regular
Public School Districts (N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7). Pursuant to that policy, an undesignated fund balance of 2%
of the general fund budget or $250,000, whichever is greater may be maintained.
Specific classifications of fund balance are summarized below;
Restricted Fund Balance

Capital Reserve Account — Of the $51,046.50 balance in the capital reserve account at

June 30, 2011. These funds are restricted for future capital outlay expenditures for projects in the
School District's long range facilities plan (LRFP).
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NOTE 16 —- FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED - Continued

Restricted Fund Balance - Continued

Maintenance Reserve Account — Of the $368,741.85 balance in the maintenance reserve account
at June 30, 2011. These funds are restricted for the required maintenance of school facilities in
accordance with the Educational Facilities Construction and Financing Act (EFCFA) (N.J.S.A.
18A:7G-9) as amended by P.L. 2004, c. 73 (S1701).

Reserve for Excess Surplus — There was excess fund balance in the amount of $424,151.04 at
June 30, 2011. This amount will be appropriated as revenue in support of the 2012-2013 School
Budget. $351,358.00 was appropriated in the 2011-2012 school budget and was restricted as of
June 30, 2011.

Debt Service Fund - As of June 30, 2011, the restricted balance in the debt service fund was
$1.18.

Tuition Reserve Account — In accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:23-3.1(f)(8), the district has a
restricted fund balance in the amount of the $161,996.00 in a legal reserve for tuition
adjustments. This reserve represents foreseeable future tuition adjustments up to a maximum of
10% of the estimated tuition cost of the respective year.

Committed Fund Balance - The District has a committed fund balance of $97,340.50 at June 30, 2011.

Assigned Fund Balance — At June 30, 2011, the Board of Education has assigned and the voters have
approved $351,358.00 general fund balance to expenditures in the 2011-12 budget.

Unassigned Fund Balance — At June 30, 2011, the District has $215,167.0 of unassigned fund balance in
the general fund.

NOTE 17 - CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, the designation for Reserved Fund Balance - Excess Surplus is a
required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing
Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance at
the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount of budgeted fund
balance in their subsequent years' budget. The excess fund balance generated in June 30, 2011 is
$766,277.09.

NOTE 18 — DEFICIT FUND BALANCES

The District has a deficit fund balance of $9,983.00 in the Special Revenue Fund as of June 30, 2011 as
reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). P.L. 2009, c. 97 provides that in the event a
state school aid payment is not made until the following school budget year, districts must record the last
payment as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year. For intergovernmental
transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that recognition (revenue, expenditure, asset, liability)
should be in symmetry. i.e., if one government recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a
liability. Since the State is recording the last state aid payment in the subsequent fiscal year, the school
district cannot recognize the last state aid payment on the GAAP financial statements until the year the
state records the payable. Due to the timing difference of recording the last state aid payment, the
Special Revenue Fund balance deficit does not alone indicate that the district is facing financial
difficulties. The District deficit in the Special revenue fund in the GAAP fund statements of $9,983.00 is
equal to the last state aid payment for that fund.
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NOTE 19 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions that occurred from June 30, 2011
through December 5, 2011, the date that the financial statements were issued for possible disclosure and
recognition in the financial statements. No items have come to attention of the District that would require

disclosure.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES



REVENUES:

Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy
Other Local Government Units - Restricted
Tuition
Interest on Capital Reserve
Interest on Maintenance Reserve
Interest on Tuition Reserve
Miscellaneous

Total Local Sources

State Sources:
Categorical Special Education Aid
Categorical Security Aid
Adjustment Aid
Categorical Transportation Aid
Extraordinary Aid
Additional State Aid
TPAF Pension (On-Behalf, Non-Budgeted)
Post-Retirement Medical Contributions
TPAF Social Security (Reimbursed-
Non-Budgeted)
Total State Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

CURRENT EXPENSE
Kindergarten - Salaries of Teachers
Grades 1 - 5 Salaries of Teachers
Grades 6 - 8 Salaries of Teachers

Regular Programs - Home Instruction
Salaries of Teachers

Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction
Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchased Professional Educational Services
Purchased Technical Services
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS - INSTRUCTION

SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION
Resource Room/Resource Center
Salaries of Teachers
General Supplies
Total Resource Room/Resource Center

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Final to Actual
Original Budget Favorable
Budget Transfers Final Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 6,266,245.00 $ 6,266,245.00 $ 6,266,245.00 $ -
- 12,028.37 12,028.37
1,230,154.00 1,230,154.00 1,230,154.00 -
2,000.00 2,000.00 252,37 (1,747.63)
- 3,762.66 3,762.66
- 484.39 484.39
15,000.00 13,293.00 28,293.00 43,245.92 14,952.92
7,5613,399.00 13,293.00 7,526,692,00 7,5656,172.71 29,480.71
141,438.00 141,438.00 141,438.00 -
55,829.00 55,829.00 55,829.00 -
322,806.00 322,806.00 322,806.00 -
51,463.00 51,463.00 51,463.00 -
- 208,503.00 208,503.00
- 239,131.91 239,131.91
571,536,00 - 571,536.00 1,019,170.91 447 ,634.91
8,084,935.00 13,293.00 8,098,228.00 8,5675,343.62 477,115.62
138,500.00 138,500.00 133,915.90 4,584.10
1,040,000.00 (12,000.00) 1,028,000.00 984,148.60 43,851.40
645,000.00 (21,363.00) 623,637.00 585,006.98 38,630.02
3,000.00 3,000.00 210.00 2,790.00
60,000.00 6,000.00 66,000.00 63,908.18 2,001.82
2,100.00 2,100.00 - 2,100.00
500.00 500.00 - 500.00
34,000.00 3,600.00 37,500.00 30,310.25 7,189.75
137,000.00 12,000.00 149,000.00 137,231.63 11,768.37
10,000.00 (4,000.00) 6,000.00 2,573.37 3,426.63
20,000.00 20,000.00 18,927.03 1,072.97
2,090,100.00 (15,863.00) 2,074,237.00 1,956,231.94 118,005.06
393,000.00 393,000.00 391,519.60 1,480.40
4,000.00 4,000.00 3,184.14 815.86
397,000.00 - 397,000.00 394,703.74 2,296.26
397,000.00 - 397,000.00 394,703.74 2,296,268
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Basic Skills/Remedial - Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
General Supplies

Total Basic Skills/Remedial - Instruction

Bilingual Education - Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
General Supplies

Total Bilingual Education - Instruction

School-Spon. Cocurricular Activities - Instruction
Salaries
Purchased Services (300-500 series)
Supplies & Materials
Transfers to Cover Deficit

Total School-Spon. Cocurricular Activities - Inst.

School-Sponsored Athietics - Instruction
Salaries
Purchased Services (300-500 series)
Supplies & Materials
Other Objects

Total School-Sponsored Athletics - Instruction

TOTAL INSTRUCTION

UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES

Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction
Tuition to Other LEAs Within the State-Regular
Tuition to Other LEAs Within the State-Special
Tuition to County Voc. School Dist. - Regular
Tuition to County Voc. School Dist. - Special
Tuition to CSSD & Regional Day Schools
Tuition to Private School Other

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction

Undistributed Expend. - Attend. & Social Worker
Salaries
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
Supplies & Materials
Other Objects

Total Undist. Expend. - Attend. & Social Worker

Undistributed Expend. - Health Services
Salaries
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
Supplies & Materials
Other Objects

Total Undistributed Expend. - Health Services

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Final to Actual

Original Budget Favorable
Budget Transfers Final Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$ 217,500.00 $ 217,500.00 $ 212,335.08 $ 5,164.91
2,000.00 2,000.00 1,370.10 629.890
218,500.00 - 219,500.00 213,705.19 5,794.81
12,750.00 12,750.00 10,577.35 2,172.65
500.00 500.00 136.51 363.49
13,250.00 - 13,250.00 10,713.86 2,536.14
11,500.00 11,500.00 10,686.25 813.75
1,000.00 1,000.00 750.00 250.00
2,500.00 2,500.00 2,472.88 27,12
100.00 100.00 - 100.00
15,100.00 - 15,100.00 13,809.13 1,190.87
40,250.00 40,250.00 38,017.00 2,233.00
17,000.00 17,000.00 9,680.27 7,319.73
8,000.00 8,000.00 3,202,94 4,797.06
3,000.00 3,000.00 1,637.00 1,363.00
68,250.00 - 68,250.00 52,537.21 15,712.79
2,803,200.00 (15,863.00) 2,787,337.00 2,641,801.07 145,535.93
1,066,628.00 6,500.00 1,073,128.00 1,071,876.97 1,251.03

255,298.00 255,298.00 255,298.00 -

171,045.00 171,045.00 171,045.00 -

42,688.00 42,688.00 42,688.00 -
288,160.00 (6,500.00) 281,660.00 111,027.00 170,633.00
46,916.00 46,916.00 32,617.86 14,298.14
1,870,735.00 - 1,870,735.00 1,684,552.83 186,182,17
87,500.00 - 87,500.00 81,868.70 5,530.30
2,000.00 2,000.00 1,020.96 979.04
1,500.00 1,500.00 9.00 1,491.00
5,000.00 5,000.00 2,805.00 2,185.00
$6,000.00 - 96,000.00 85,804.66 10,195.34
93,000.00 1,500.00 94,500.00 93,711.03 788.97
6,110.00 6,110.00 5,585.00 525.00
150.00 150.00 145.76 4.24
2,500.00 2,500.00 1,586.90 913.10
110.00 110.00 85.00 25,00
101,870.00 1,500.00 103,370.00 101,113.69 2,256.31
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Undist. Expend. - Speech, OT, PT & Related Services
Salaries
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Supplies & Materials

Student - Related Services

Undist. Expend. - Other Support Serv. Students -
Extra Services
Salaries
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Supplies & Materials
Student - Extra Services

Undistributed Expenditures - Guidance
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Other Purchased Prof. And Tech. Services
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
Supplies & Materials

Undistributed Expenditures - Guidance

Undist Expenditures - Child Study Teams
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Purchased Professional - Education Services
Other Purchased Professional and Tech. Services
Misc Pur Serv (400-500 series O/than Resid Costs)
Supplies & Materials
Other Objects

Undist. Expend. - Other Support Serv. Students Spec.

Undist. Expend. - Improvement of Inst. Services
Salary of Supervisor of Instruction
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
Supplies & Materials
Other Objects

Total Undist. Expend. - Improvement of Inst. Serv.

Undist. Expend. - Edu. Media Serv./Sch. Library
Salaries
Salaries of Technology Coordinators
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
Supplies & Materials
Other Objects
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Educational
Media Services - Schoo! Library

Undist. Expend. - Instructional Staff Training Serv.
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction
Purchased Professional - Education Services
Supplies & Materials

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Instructional

Staff Training Services

Variance
Final to Actual

Original Budget Favorable
Budget Transfers Final Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
78,000.00 $ 78,000.00 76,237.67 $ 1,762.33
7,500.00 7,500.00 7,408.32 91.68
2,000.00 2,000.00 1,837.76 162.24
87,500.00 - 87,500.00 85,483.75 2,016.25
15,000.00 156,000.00 13,375.95 1,624.05
90,000.00 90,000.00 64,350.02 25,649.98
100.00 100.00 - 100.00
105,100.00 - 105,100.00 77,725.97 27,374.03
109,500.00 (1,400.00) 108,100.00 106,168.65 1,931.35
13,500.00 1,400.00 14,900.00 14,176.37 723,63
20,000.00 140.00 20,140.00 13,165.55 6,974.45
2,000.00 2,000.00 - 2,000.00
1,500.00 1,500.00 1,020.96 479.04
5,000.00 (1,500.00) 3,500.00 1,196.27 2,303.73
151,500.00 (1,360.00) 150,140.00 135,727.80 14,412.20
105,100.00 105,100.00 101,085.50 4,014.50
33,400.00 33,400.00 32,721.05 678.95
90,000.00 90,000.00 70,594.16 19,405.84
3,000.00 3,000.00 1,000.00 2,000.00
4,000.00 4,000.00 1,442.34 2,557.66
6,500.00 6,500.00 972.30 5,627.70
1,000.00 1,000.00 458.80 541.20
243,000.00 - 243,000.00 208,274.15 34,725.85
51,000.00 51,000.00 44,009.07 6,990.93
33,000.00 33,000.00 32,993.22 6.78
350.00 350.00 - 350.00
1,500.00 1,500.00 996.44 503.56
500.00 500.00 178.00 322.00
86,350.00 - 86,350.00 78,176.73 8,173.27
70,500.00 70,500.00 63,543.58 6,956.42
37,600.00 37,600.00 37,255.50 344.50
1,000.00 1,000.00 595.00 405.00
3,000.00 1,100.00 4,100.00 3,313.58 786.42
28,000.00 (1,100.00) 26,900.00 12,533.07 14,366.93
3,000.00 3,000.00 2,220.00 780.00
143,100.00 - 143,100.00 119,460.73 23,639.27
4,650.00 4,650.00 4,400.76 249.24
500.00 500.00 - 500.00
500.00 500.00 - 500.00
5,650.00 - 5,650.00 4,400.76 1,249.24
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Undist. Expend. - Supp. Serv. - General Admin.
Salaries
Legal Services
Audit Fees
Architectural and Engineering Services
Communications/Telephone
BOE Other Purchased Services
Misc. Purch. Serv (400-500 series) Other
than 530 & 585
General Supplies
BOE In-House Training/Meeting Supplies
Miscellaneous Expenditures
BOE Membership Dues and Fees
Other
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Support
Services - General Administration

Undist. Expend. - Supp. Serv. - School Admin.
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
Supplies & Materials
Other Objects

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Support

Services - School Administration

Undist. Expend. - Central Services
Salaries
Purchased Professional Services
Miscellaneous Purchased Service (400-500 Series)
Supplies and Materials
Miscellaneous Expenditures
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Central Services

Undist. Expend. - Admin. Info. Technology
Purchased Technical Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Tota! Undistributed Expenditures - Admin. Info. Tech.

Undist. Expend. - Required Maint. School Fac.
Salaries
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Service
General Supplies

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Required

Maintenance for School Facilities

Undist. Expend. - Other Oper. & Maint.of Plant
Salaries
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Services
Other Purchased Property Services
Insurance
Miscellaneous Purchased Services
General Supplies
Energy (Heat and Electricity)
Other Objects
Salaries of Non-Instructionaf Aids
Energy (Naturai Gas)
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Other
Operations and Maintenance of Plant

C41

Variance
Final to Actual

Original Budget Favorable
Budget Transfers Final Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$ 123,000.00 $ 123,000.00 117,698.88 $ 5,301.12
18,000.00 18,000.00 5,558.00 12,442.00
20,500.00 20,500.00 19,800.00 700.00
3,500.00 3,500.00 - 3,500.00
17,000.00 17,000.00 12,681.02 4,318.98
3,250.00 3,250.00 41.85 3,208.15
22,000.00 22,000.00 20,893.22 1,106.78
10,000.00 10,000.00 4,079.78 5,920.22
600.00 600.00 71.80 528.20
15,000.00 15,000.00 14,874.71 125.29
12,000.00 12,000.00 10,975.45 1,024.55
244,850.00 - 244,850.00 206,674.71 38,175.29
37,200.00 37,200.00 36,662.86 537.14
12,950.00 1,100.00 14,050.00 14,016.73 3327
2,100.00 2,100.00 1,144.08 955,92
5,000.00 (693.50) 4,306.50 4,078.34 228.16
2,000.00 (400.00) 1,600.00 1,118.29 481.71
59,250.00 6.50 59,256.50 57,020.30 2,236.20
119,525.00 3,600.00 123,125.00 123,027.40 97.60
13,000.00 (3,600.00) 9,400.00 5,404.00 3,996.00
2,200.00 2,200.00 1,306.72 893.28
4,000.00 4,000.00 806.71 3,193.29
4,000.00 (500.00) 3,600.00 2,187.00 1,313.00
142,725.00 (500.00) 142,225.00 132,731.83 9,493.17
10,000.00 2,500.00 12,500.00 11,639.31 860.69
5,400.00 (2,000.00) 3,400.00 355.72 3,044,28
15,400.00 500.00 15,900.00 11,995.03 3,904.97
30,000.00 30,000.00 28,021.61 1,978.39
45,000.00 45,000.00 27,393.01 17,606.99
5,000.00 5,000.00 3,225.27 1,774.73
80,000.00 - 80,000.00 58,639.89 21,360.11
260,200.00 (630.00) 259,570.00 252,528.55 7,041.45
6,000.00 6,000.00 3,434.66 2,565.34
45,000.00 12,625.00 57,625.00 49,739.98 7,885.02
15,750.00 1,000.00 16,750.00 14,148.72 2,601.28

14,000.00 14,000.00 14,000.00 -
200.00 200.00 - 200.00
30,000.00 5,000.00 35,000.00 31,440.11 3,559.89
95,000.00 (13,000.00) 82,000.00 46,353.30 35,646.70
250.00 250.00 166.00 84.00
21,500.00 21,500.00 20,918.92 581.08
95,000.00 (5,000.00) 90,000.00 76,376.02 13,623.98
582,900.00 (5.00) 582,885.00 509,106.26 73,788.74
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CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Undistributed Expenditures - Security
Salaries
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Security

Total Undistributed Expenditures
Operations and Maintenance of Plant

Undist. Expend. - Student Transportation Serv.

Management Fee - ESC & CTSA Trans Program
Contr Serv (Bet. Home & Sch) - Vendors

Contr. Serv. (Other than Home & School) - Vend
Contr. Serv. - (Bt. Home and School) - Joint Agrmt
Contr. Serv. - (Reg Students) - ESCs & CTSAs
Contr. Serv. (Spc Ed. Students) - ESCs & CTSAs
Contr. Serv. - Aid in Lieu of Payments - Non Pub
Contr. Serv. - Aid in Lieu of Payments - Charter

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Student
Transportation Services

Unallocated Benefits
Social Security Contribution
Other Retirement Contributions - Regular
Defined Contribution Retirement Plan
Unemployment Compensation
Workmen's Compensation
Health Benefits
Tuition Reimbursement
Other Employee Benefits

Total Unallocated Benefits

Total Personal Services - Employee Benefits

TPAF (On-Behalf-Non-Budgeted)
Normal Pension Cost
TPAF Social Security (Reimbursed-
Non-Budgeted)
Total On-Behalf Contributions

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES
TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE
CAPITAL OUTLAY

Equipment
Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction

Undist. Expend. - Required Maint. for School Fac.

Undist. Expend. - Security
Total Equipment

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Architectural/Engineering Services
Construction Services
Other Objects

Total Facilities Acquisition and Constr. Serv

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY

Summer School - Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Other Saiaries for Instruction
General Supplies

Total Summer School - Instruction

Variance
Final to Actual

Original Budget Favorable
Budget Transfers Final Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$ 21,500.00 - $ 21,500.00 17,500.07 $ 3,999.93
21,500.00 - 21,500.00 17,500.07 3,099.93
684,400.00 (5.00) 684,385.00 585,246.22 99,148.78
10,500.00 10,500.00 5,485,563 5,014.47
7,500.00 7,500.00 1,650.00 5,850.00
15,750.00 15,750.00 9,182.46 6,567.54
41,500.00 41,500.00 27,500.36 13,999.64
31,000.00 31,000.00 24,834.50 6,165.50
100,000.00 100,000.00 41,277.36 58,722.64
3,000.00 3,000.00 - 3,000.00
3,000.00 3,000.00 - 3,000.00
212,250.00 - 212,250.00 109,930.21 102,319.79
70,000.00 5,500.00 75,500.00 65,364.26 10,135.74
64,000.00 8,100.00 72,100.00 72,018.00 82.00
2,700.00 2,700.00 2,049.50 650.50
10,000.00 10,000.00 5,183.04 4,816.96

31,000.00 31,000.00 31,000.00 -
1,065,000.00 (16,300.00) 1,048,700.00 867,137.64 181,562.36
18,850.00 18,850.00 12,000.00 6,850.00
1,725.00 16,493.00 18,218.00 17,437.50 780.50
1,260,575.00 16,493.00 1,277,068.00 1,072,189.94 204,878.06
1,260,575.00 16,493.00 1,277,068.00 1,619,824.85 (242,756.85)
- 208,503.00 (208,503.00)
- 239,131.91 (239,131.91)
- - - 447,634.91 (447,634.91)
5,610,255.00 16,634.50 5,526,889.50 5,204,144 .22 322,745.28
8,313,455.00 771.50 8,314,226.50 7,845,945.29 468,281.21
34,000.00 6,347.98 40,347.98 24,489.98 15,858.00
34,000.00 6,347.98 40,347.98 24,489.98 15,858.00
65,000.00 65,000.00 17,258.60 47,741.40
386,383.00 386,383.00 309,694.00 76,698.00
451,393.00 - 451,393.00 326,952.60 124,440.40
485,393.00 6,347.98 491,740,98 351,442.58 140,298.40

10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 -
1,400.00 1,400.00 200.00 1,200.00
100.00 100.00 - 100.00
11,500.00 - 11,500.00 10,200.00 1,300.00
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CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

C1

Variance
Final to Actual
Original Budget Favorable
Budget Transfers Final Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
TOTAL SUMMER SCHOOL $ 11,500.00 $ - $ 11,500.00 $ 10,200.00 $ 1,300.00
Education Jobs
Salaries of Teachers 12,014.00 12,014.00 12,014.00 -
Employees Benefits 1,279.00 1,279.00 1,279.00 -
TOTAL EDUCATION JOBS - 13,293.00 13,293.00 13,293.00 -
Transfer of Funds to Charter Schools 15,000.00 15,000.00 - 15,000.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,825,348.00 20,412.48 8,845,760.48 8,220,880.87 624,879.61
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (740,413.00) (7,119.48) (747,532.48) 354,462.75 1,101,995.23
Other Financing Sources
Operating Transfers QOut:

Transfer to Cover Deficit (Food Service) (39,000.00) (39,000.00) 39,000.00
Total Other Financing Sources (38,000.00) - (39,000.00) - 39,000.00
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other

Financing Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and

Other Financing Sources (Uses) (779,413.00) (7,119.48) (786,532.48) 354,462.75 1,140,995.23
Fund Balance July 1 2,116,448.48 - 2,116,448.48 2,116,448.48 -
Fund Balance June 30 $ 1,337,035.48 $ (7,119.48) $ 1,329,916.00 $ 2,470,911.23 $ 1,140,995.23
Recapitulation;

Restricted Fund Balance:

Reserved Excess Surplus - Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures $ 424,151.04

Reserve for Excess Surplus 766,277.09

Maintenance Reserve 368,741.85

Capital Reserve 51,046.65

Tuition Reserve for 2011-2012 81,996.10

Tuition Reserve for 2012-2013 80,000.00

Committed Fund Balance:
Encumbrances 97,340.50
Reserved for Future Expenditures - Death Benefits
Assigned Fund Balance:
Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures 351,358.00
Unassigned Fund Balance 250,000.00
2,470,911.23
Reconciliation to Governmental Funds Statements (GAAP):
Last State Aid Payment not recognized on GAAP Basis 34,833.00
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NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information

Budget-to-GAAP Reconciliation

Note to RSI

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Note A - Explanation of Differences Between Budgetary Inflows and
Outflows GAAP Revenue and Expenditures

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue"
from the budgetary comparison schedule [C-1]

Difference - budget to GAAP:

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related
revenue is recognized.

Prior year final State Aid payment was delayed until July 2010
and is recorded as revenue in current year under GAAP.

Final State Aid payment was delayed until July 2011 is recorded
as budgetary revenue but is not recognized under GAAP.

[B-2]
Uses / outfiows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the
budgetary comparison schedule [C-1]

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received
for GAAP financial reporting purposes.

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balance - governmental funds. [B-2]

General
Fund

$ 8,575,343.62

75,321.20

(34,833.00)

$ 8,220,880.87

$ 8,220,880.87

[C-2]

[B-2]

[C-2]

[B-2]

C-3

Special
Revenue
Fund

$ 613,585.55

20,865.66
17,324.80

(9,983.00)

$ 641,793.01

$ 613,585.55

20,865.66

$ 634,451.21

Page 58



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



SPECIAL REVENUE FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specific purposes.
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CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Preschool Education Aid
Budgetary Basis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

E-2

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction

Total Instruction

Support Services:
Personal Services - Employee Benefits

Total Support Services

Contribution to Charter Schools

Total Expenditures

Total
Budgeted Actual Variance
$ 111,680.00 $ 111,680.01 $ (0.01)
35,325.00 35,324.64 0.36
147,005.00 147,004.65 0.35
16,795.00 16,795.35 0.35)
16,795.00 16,795.35 0.35)
$ 163,800.00 $ 163,800.00 $ 0.00

CALCULATION OF BUDGET & CARRYOVER

Total revised 2010-11 Preschool Education Aid Allocation

Add: Actual ECPA/PEA Carryover June 30, 2010

Total Preschool Education Aid Funds Available for 2010/11 Budget
Less: 2009/10 Budgeted Preschool Education Aid (Including Prior Year Budget Carryover)
Available & Unbudgeted Preschool Education Aid Funds as of June 30, 2011

Add: June 30, 2010 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid
2010-11 Carryover — Preschool Education Aid/Preschool

2010-11 Preschool Education Aid Carryover Budgeted for Preschool Programs in 2011-12

$ 163,800.00

163,800.00
(163,800.00)
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND DETAIL STATEMENT

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities and equipment purchases other than those financed by proprietary funds.



FIDUCIARY FUNDS DETAIL STATEMENTS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for funds received by the school district for a specific
purpose.

Unemployment Compensation Fund — This is an expendable trust fund used to pay
unemployment compensation insurance claims.

Scholarship Fund — This is a non-expendable trust fund in which expenses are limited
to amounts earned on trust principal.

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the school district as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds.

Student Activity Fund — This agency fund is used to account for student funds held at
the schools.

Payroll Fund — This agency fund is used to account for the payroll transactions of the
school district.



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Funds
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
June 30, 2011

H-1

Unemployment Private
Compensation Purpose Agency
Trust Trust Funds Totals
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,368.33 $ 357.00 % 17,548.58 § 22,273.91
Total Assets 4,368.33 357.00 17,548.58 22,273.91
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 822.25 822,25
Interfund Payable 4,999.33 4,999.33
Payable to Student Groups 12,631.23 12,631.23
Payroll Deductions & Withholdings 18.02 18.02
Total Liabilities 822.25 - 17,548.58 18,370.83
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Held in Trust for Unemployment
Claims and Other Purposes (Deficit) $ 3,546.08 3,546.08
Reserve for Scholarships $ 357.00 357.00
Total Net Assets 3,903.08
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 22,273.91
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CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Fiduciary Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Plan Member
Board Contribution
Total Contributions

Investments Earnings:
Interest

Net Investment Earnings
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Unemployment Claims
Scholarship Awards

Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning of the Year

Net Assets (Deficit) - End of the Year

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

H-2

Unemployment Private
Compensation Purpose
Trust Trust Totals
$ 6,457.41 $ 6,457.41
5,183.04
11,640.45 - 6,457.41
3.14 3.14
- 3.14 3.14
11,640.45 3.14 6,460.55
9,764.40 9,764.40
500.00 500.00
9,764.40 500.00 10,264.40
1,876.05 (496.86) 1,379.19
1,670.03 853.86 2,523.89
$ 3,5646.08 357.00 $ 3,903.08
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H-3
CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
Student Activity Agency Fund
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
As of June 30, 2011

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 2011
Margaret Mace Schoot $ 9,67045 $ 20,013.35 § 1715257 $ 12,631.23
Total All Schools $ 967045 $ 20,01335 $ 17,162.57 § 12,631.23
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CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $
Total Assets $
LIABILITIES:

Payroll Deductions & Withholdings $
Interfund Payable

Total Liabilities 3

Payroll Agency Fund
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
As of June 30, 2011

H-4

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 2011
4,907.97 1,729,782.86 $ 1,729,673.48 5,017.35
4,907.97 1,729,782.86 $ 1,729,673.48 5,017.35
43.50 1,729,304.59 $ 1,729,330.07 18.02
4,864.47 478.27 343.41 4,999.33
4,907.97 1,729,782.86 $ 1,729,673.48 5,017.35
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LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES

The Long-term Debt Schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the
general long-term liabilities of the school district. This includes serial bonds outstanding an
obligations under capital leases.
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REVENUES:
Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Reguiar Debt Service:
Interest
Redemption of Principal
Total Regular Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources(Uses):
Operating Transfers In (Out):
Transfer from General Fund
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Over(Under)
Expenditures
Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL. DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Debt Service Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Final Positive (Negative)
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual
220,387.00 % 220,387.00 $ 220,387.00 $ -
220,387.00 - 220,387.00 220,387.00 -
70,387.00 70,387.00 70,385.82 1.18

150,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 -
220,387.00 - 220,387.00 220,385.82 1.18
220,387.00 - 220,387.00 220,385.82 1.18

- - - 1.18 1.18

- - - 1.18 1.00

- $ - - $ 1.18  § 1.00
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STATISTICAL SECTION
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CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Property Tax Levies and Collections,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Exhibit J-9

Fiscal Collected within the Fiscal Year

Year of the Levy Collections in
Ended Taxes Levied for Percentage Subsequent

June 30, the Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years

2002 4,959,575.00 4,959,575.00 100% -
2003 5,400,033.00 5,400,033.00 100% -
2004 5,762,996.00 5,762,996.00 100% -
2005 5,477,730.00 5,477,730.00 100% -
2006 5,763,582.00 5,763,582.00 100% -
2007 6,043,479.00 6,043,479.00 100% -
2008 6,366,774.00 6,366,774.00 100% -
2009 6,430,567.98 6,430,567.98 100% -
2010 6,413,740.00 6,413,740.00 100% -
2011 6,486,632.00 6,486,632.00 100% -

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of Schoo! Taxes (A4F form)
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CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities

Exhibit J-11

Fiscal Percentage of
Year General Net General Actual Taxable Per Capita
Ended Obligation Bonded Debt Value of Personal
June 30, Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property Income
2002 2,531,000 5 - 2,531,000 038% % 36,053
2003 2,421,000 - 2,421,000 0.35% 36,492
2004 2,301,000 - 2,301,000 0.31% 38,740
2005 2,181,000 - 2,181,000 0.27% 40,316
2006 2,056,000 - 2,056,000 0.06% 42,322
2007 1,926,000 - 1,926,000 0.06% 44,575
2008 1,791,000 - 1,791,000 0.05% 46,067
2009 1,651,000 - 1,651,000 0.05% 46,329
2010 1,506,000 - 1,506,000 0.04%  Not Available
201 1,356,000 1,356,000 0.05%  Not Available

Page 81



€'265°'€58'v9

00°000°9G€’L

€265 L6'€9

16°LL¥'¥88 %Z8'S 00°000°06L°Sl
€6'6SL'6LL'S %<Z8'S 00'¥60'892'66
1€°096°0/8'L %Z8'S 00°000°v€LCE
25'8G¥'296'¥S %00°00L 25°8G¥'296'¥S
19e@ ajqediddy buipueysino
BuiddepanQ abejuasiad 19eQ
jo aleyg psjewssy
psjewysy
ZL-raqiyxg

Z8 ebed

Splooay 1ouIsIg

yoday Ipny 0L0Z - uoissiwwo) abpug Aunon Aepy aden
Hoday upny 0102 - Aoyiny sanian fediounpy Aunod Aepy ade)

Hoday ypny 0102 - Aeyy aded jo Auno)
Hoday 31PNy 01L0Z - POOMPJIAA YUHON Jo AID
'$921n0g

199Qq buiddepanQ pue jo0u1q je10 ]
192Q 39941Q 1213SIQ |00YIS POOMPIIM UHON 30 A31D
190Q Buiddepang ‘fejoiqng
uoissiwwo) abpug Auno) Aepy eden
VN Auno) Aepy aden
Runon Aepy aden
199Q W0

POOMPIIAA UHON jO AjtD
soxe] Auadoid uynum pieday 1qeqg

jlun JejusWIUIoA0S

0102 ‘1€ J2qwiada( jJo sy
499@ SaNIANDY [ejuawuIdA09 Buiddeuaap pue Joa11q

1O141S10 TOOHOS GOOMATIM HLHON 40 ALID



%SY' L

%651 %96°L %62°C

€8 abed

'61-¥2°v81 WSIN A les nwi %

‘uopexe] Jo uoistalq ‘Ainseal] Jo Juawpedaq ‘Assiof MeN Jo EIS oL Jo HOdaY [ENULY By} tWOJ) PAUIEIqo S1am SOSEG LOIEN|EA pazijenb3 :20inog

%L0€

%GE Y %90°L %58'8 %Ly 0L %EVZL Wi 1gap Jo abejusaled e se

uwy 8y} o) a|qedlidde 1gep jau jejo L

612'85€°26 $ 685602€6 $  SBE69E68 $  LSPISOL 62£'L06'09 $  899'69L'Gy $  1S0°/0.9C $  ISV'L69EZ $  085969°0Z $  800088LL $ uiew jgap |eba

000'95€'} 00079054 000'16.°L 000°16L°L 000'926'L 000°950'Z 0001812 000'L0€C 00012y 000'1L€5'2 W o) 8jqedndde 1gep jeu fejo]

6LL'YLL'E6 $ 68G'GLLYE  $  G8E'09L'L6 $  IS¥'Sle'8. $ 62E'/28'C79 $  899'GZTULY $  IS0'888'0E $  ISY'ZE6'SZ $ 08SZLL'EZ $  800°198'0Z $ nungeq
1102 o0z 6002 8002 1002 9002 5002 ¥00Z €002 7002

61.'8G€'26 $
000°9S€’}
6LLYLL'ES

VI6'EZB'ECL'E §

€26'LLYLIEE $
Y01LLY'652°E
660'EEE'6LL'E
0z1'199'266'C $

uibuew 1gap jeba
199p |o0Yds papuog 1N
(abesane Jo %¢ ) Wi igeq

Apadoud s|qexe) jo uopenjea pazienba abelaAy
8002

6002
oloz

SISBq UOHEN|BA pazijenby

€i-r3qyx3

SUR3A [eISI4 U3) IS
‘uojeuuoju] uibael 1qaq jeba
LORILSIA TOOHOS GOOMA UM HLHON 40 ALID



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit J-14
Demographic and Economic Statistics,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Personal
Year Income Per Capita
Ended (thousands of Personal Unemployment
June 30, Population dollars) Income Rate
2002 4,887 $ 176,191 $ 36,053 18.7%
2003 4,856 177,205 36,492 19.3%
2004 4,769 184,751 38,740 13.7%
2005 4,752 191,582 40,316 11.0%
2006 4,818 203,907 42,322 11.5%
2007 4,872 217,169 44 575 11.0%
2008 4,843 223,102 46,067 13.4%
2009 4,822 223,398 46,329 18.7%
2010 Not Available Not Available Not Available 19.4%
2011 Not Available Not Available Not Available Not Available
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CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Insurance Schedule

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit J-20

(Unaudited)
Amount of
Company Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible

ACCASBO JIF

School Package Policy (1)
Property, inland Marine and Auto Damage  $ 150,000,000.00 $ 500.00
Boiler and Machinery 100,000,000.00 1,000.00
Crime 500,000.00 500.00
General and Automobile Liability 10,000,000.00 None
Workers' Compensation Statutory None
Educator's Legal Liability 10,000,000.00 None
Pollution Legal Liability 3,000,000.00 25,000.00

Source: District Records

Page 90



SINGLE AUDIT SECTION















SL9LbiE § Z56L1Cll $(000651td) § - $ Gicsce’)) $ {eC60LY1Y) $ eV PSSiVY § - s (1566555 §
- - - - - (36'859'€9) €V ELS69 - 6v ¥S8'S)
- L9951's (19'951'6) OL/OE/90  60/L0/20
- (v2'£99'95) ¥L199'9S LLOE/90  OV/L0/20
- 88'269 (88'269) OL/OE/90  60/10/20
- (0z'166'9) 0Z'166'9 LL/0E/90  0L/10/20
8L9¥' L 256LL'CLL (0006971 £2) - (ie'eeE’L) 6£050°15¢) 00'} ¥0'8LE - Zo'svL’2y)
00'¥Zi'L (00°9¥¢) 00'860°'% (00°0ze) LIOZ/LE/R  OLOZ/LIG
(00'860'1) (00'860°1) - OL/LE/B0  60/L0/60
00°29€ 00°29¢ 60/L£/80  BO/LO/GO
00'8L 0082 20/1€/80  90/L0/60
Y L8E'TL 00'512'pS) 00'€£9°'98 (¥5°096'81) LLLERO  OL/LO/60
£5VL6'CL (00'062'61) (ov'ses's) 0028L'LL @ozi'sy) OL/LE/B0  60/L0/60
00°'66€'} (1z'vog'ee) 12€9L'LE 60/L€/80  BO/LO/6O
0059’81 19919'8 6€2£0'0} BO/LE/B0  20/L0/60
(se'v9) SE'¥9 20/L£/80  SO/L0/60
00v2ZL'} 00'421'L LLLE/B0  0L/L0/60
(00'vZ1'1) (00'e8t) (00°1¥6) OL/LE/BO  60/L0/60
00°260°L (00°'1¥6) 00'8£0'C 60/1£/80  80/10/60
(L1091'2) 11091’ BO/LE/B0  20/L0/60
(52119 SLHg 20/1€/80  90/1.0/60
Uceszter)
0041y (00'112'y) - L1I08/60  60/10/20
|75 15 (00°922'52) (v2'69%'¥8) 00°v86'82 (20'229'9) LLIOE/60  60/L0/LO
0042’ (00°¢682) 00¥YL'T (00'919'2) LULERO  OL/LO/60
(00°g62) 00°EVL'S (00's¥8'Y) OL/LE/B0  60/L0/60
(03'6vE) oL'6ve 60/1£/80  80/10/60
16'615'GY (00'zs¥'LD 00°204 (€0 2vi'oet) 00'80L°0LL LULEBO  OL/LO/6O
0 (00°204) 00°ELY'LE (€5°'59¢"2€) OL/IE/80  60/L0/60
[4: 9373 26VI9T 60/1£/80  BO/LO/60
vrzey'e (9e'22D 9€'L2L 20/16/80  90/30/60
(9v'02) w0z 9WIE/B0  SO/L0/60
(85°2£5°801)
SL'682°1 (00°8z¥'y) [P 00'Z¢'9L £o's¥s'LL) LHLE/80 6071020
09°€SY'LL (00°004°2€) 00°6SL'EL (ov'510°101) 00'81Z'89 LL/LE/BO  OL/LO/60
(00°252'8) (8¥'cL0'D 00'226'LE (2s'019'6€) OL/OE/80  60/40/60
LLEE8' L (25'180'9) 00°180'9 €TYER' )L 60/LE/80  BO/LO/60
1£'529 [ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 1£'629 $ l0/1€/80  90/L0/60
LHOE/S LL/0E/S saouejeg SiGawsnipy Semnyipuedxy [ZEEEY] WNGWY 0102 oL wosg
e JojuRIS anuaAsy {elqeAIRO0Y SJea ) Keyebpng ysen (aaoxieA) ‘0g sunp je pouad weis
o} ang bausjaq wE:oUnv(v loud jo \_0>D>EWU aoueleg
juawleday
LIOZ '0€ aunr papua JedA [BISI] Y} 104
SPIeMY |RI3PAY JO mﬂb:ﬂ_—«:ﬂ&lw J0 ajnpayog
1241SIQ TOOHOS AOOMAIIM HLHON 40 ALID
V @inpayog

€M Harg

209'0§
899'95
818's
166'9

oyl

¥ZL'L
266°L
8€0°C
It 4
820'¢

L'y
6£5°0EL
L£0°S
8LL'S
¥66'F
199'i81
92’9l
182'981
9/€'e9l
Lis'eel

29208

£LY'8L1
€18'601
zev'sol
186°0Z4

UNGWY
esy
Jo weibaig

VIN
VIN
VIN
VYN

110892-9TON
01089E-9TON
60089€-9TON
210089¢-97TON

+1088E-GTON
01089€-610N
60089€-9TON
80089£-97T0N

20089¢-91ON

01089E-a1ON
01089€-61ON
60089€-G1ON
80089€-9TON
10089€-87TON

0L089€-V3al
0L089E-V3A!
01089e-vaAL
0L089E-v3AI
60089€-v3dI
01089¢-v3al
01089€-v3Al
60089€-v3aA!
20089¢-vaai
90089¢-vaA!

01089¢-8T1ON
110892-GT0N
01089g-GTON
600BIE-E1ON
$ L0089E-€1ON

Jaquini
waloid
ajEls
40 jurin

§SS°0L
§55°0L
£55°0)
£€55°01L

18C¥8
13:74 ¢}
LBZ¥8
13:74 ¢}

j%:74 4]
[5:74 ¢}
3:74 ¢}
3:74 ¢}

86218

981’8
98Lve
9%L've
281’8
98l 'v8

26EV8
L6EVE
L20v8
L20v8
2208
20v8
1z20'v8
L20v8
Le0ve
Le0ve

68218
0i0v8
0i0'v8
0il0'v8
olove

JequinN
va4{o
|esapady

SPIEMY JEIJUBUI 4 |eIapa [B10]
pun asudiau3 rejo

weibaid Yaun jooyss JeUOHEN
weibold younT jooyss jeuoneN
weiboid isepjeaig j00yog
weibold Jsepealg jooyos

:pung asudiajug

:uonesnp3 jo Juawyedaq NeIg Ybnaiyr-passey

56 abeq

aunynauby jo Juswuedad ‘s n

pun4 anuaAay |ej39ds [ejo)

aVed 11 8L
JanoAued 'Q ped Ji L
JanoAueD ‘Q Ued [} oML
18A0ALED ‘A Ued |} SUL

(uononpay 971 SSEID) V Wed || SRLL
JanoAue) ‘(Uolonpey dZIS SSBID) V Hed 1) 8L
JancAue) ‘(uononpay 8215 $5€10) v Hed 1f 9L
JaA0ALED ‘(UoNoNpaY 821S SSBIO) VY Wed | BfiL

JOAOALED ‘A @)L

AL
JaAcALRD ‘Al Bl
JaA0AUeD ‘A 3L
JBA0ALED ‘Al 3L
IBADALED Al B[)L

JaisniD uoneanpd fewads fejo)
looydsaid 'v'3'q’) vaHY
aVed VI Al VHNY
fooyosaid ‘g ved v'Iql
JaAoALE) - 100Y2SAId 'S Yed v''Q’
JanoAue) - jooyasaid ‘g Ved v'I'Ql
Jenbay oiseq ‘g ved V'3’ Al
JanoAue?) - Jenbay dised ‘g Ved V'3’ Qi
19A0ALRD - JeInbay dIseq ‘g Ved VI A
JsA0AueD - Jeinbay dised ‘g ved V'3 ql
JaAoAue) - seinbay dised ‘g ved vI'a’|

“18}5N|D uopeanp3 |erads

JBISNI] | S iROL
1 9L VNV
19RL
JaAcAUED ‘| AL
JanoAueD 'l amL
JBACALED ‘| BNL

J9snI0 | AL
pung anuaasy |e1oadg

‘UOREINPI JO Juawpedaq 3eS Ybnaiy)-passey
uojeanp3 jo Juswiedaq ‘s'n

)L Weiboig

foWRID YBNoIYL-SSE/IOIUBID [RIBPDS



96 30ed

SOTSYESL  § W009vebY  $ EVl9ZZ | § temiey 5 - STE58E69) S E58E6S STeLc982200)  § vreveze0tl 8 - $ 665565  § 6LVSYE $ 20UBsISSY feOUBULY TS [EI0L
Z1886'€ - - - - - - {50 €L - - (29852} Ppung asudiau3 @0l
9268L'T - 48:1%4 [c4%:Tk4} 0L0E/e0 6O/LO/L0  0BLT £90-09EE-010-001-04 (oiRuS @1E1S) Weibold Yaur (00Yag UCIEN
LLBSY'L (L1BSP'L) L1650 LLI0E/90 LI BSEL 190-09£€-0L0-004-60 (sieys 9115) weibald Yaun |eeuds jeucteN
0 BEE - 0s0F (05°0%) 0LI0E/S0 6O/L0/Z0  BEE 960-09EE-0L0-004-0 (e1eus oyms) weibald Isepieaig jooyas feuokeN
- LL/0E/90 0LAW/L0 - 960-09€€-0L0-001-60 (ereys 31215) weiBoiy sepieaig 1004IS [BUOREN
puny asudiauy
‘auminouby jo wewpedaq JElS
- - - < - - - - - - - - pun sRaloxd euded oL
QUON
‘puny sjvloid [ERdeD
Q 9 Aasser maN
IS pLy69L (00°€86 6) €12182Z LeviZy - (€58€6'S) €5BE6S {91'SES 092) 08°065 v8Z - 665565 18viZY puR anueray [e1ads 10 L
99722 0% VEESEYL t9gzzL'ov) 00'9.1°SS LLI0E/90 OULM0  9LL'SS 990-0ZL5PEQ00L-LL SIptS d1seq
- - (002952} 00°LVST 0L/0£/90 6U/LIL0  BIS6L 990-0ZLSPEC00L-0L SiS aiseg
ooV (00’58t} 00'5L0T LL/0E/90 OO0 SLOT 980-0Z45-VEC-004-LE uogonsu| ejuawWaKddng
- - (o0 20v'1) 00 L0t 0L/0£/90 6000 ZEWL 990-0ZLSPEC-00L-0L uogonysu| eluawsiddns
S2°5¥S'L (szo9L's) 00'90£'9 L LI0E/90 0LI0  90L9 990-0Z15-VE0-00L-L L uoRRIYSSEID ¥ UCREUNLEXT
- - (€5'£80'1) €57280'L 0L/0E/90 60LBIL0  SSL'V 990-0ZLSVEC-00L0L uORRIYSSE}D P UoRRUIEXT
1S3 paddesipuen
0068 95'9vs {00 268} {prgas’y) 00ZTH'T 00268 0LI0E/90 SUAWI0  L6R 190-0ZLS-VE0-00L-0L yavads
00086 LL/DE/S0 00 TT 290-0ZL5¥E0-00L-L 4 yosadg
sBaMIRG Ay
L2 2€9'0L 622 244 60/0E/90 BWIO/Z0  OvOL €26-0ZL5-VEQ-004 60 pry ABojouyoa).
L8V89'LZ 6182 (1e'v89'12) 00ELLLT LL/0€/90 oULIIZ0  ELLLZ €2E-0ZLSPEOOOL-LL PrY Moogxe)
004520l - (ze21) 2061 0L/0€/30 6WLONZ0  ISThE €LE-0ZLS-PEO-00LO} Piv oogqpe]
00°206'9) - (o0 oLo 0L/0£/90 80/LGL0  L06'9L 0/0-0ZIS¥EC004-0L Businy
00/2L'ST {00'222'52) 0022L'ST LL/OEr90 OL/LO/20 2LST 0£0-0ZLSVEQ004-LL Buiziny
Py agqnduop N
88'709'E Z1'S6E ZL'S6E 80/0€/90 L0100 000 €S0-0Z15VET-S6L-80 Uogeanp3 JaoeiRyg
SSTZTE 77 SV LLL £0/0€/90 SWL0/Z0 000 €50-02L5-VEQSEYL0 uogeanp3 Japeseyd
00'585'79L {18'592'D) 18692 60/0£/90 /L0120 SESTOL 990-0Z4SVE0-SE7-60 Pry Ucizanp3 0oyaseid
- t6€'922) 6€'9.C 0L0E/%0 6/L0/Z0  VBTERL 980-0ZLSVEQSEY 0L PIY ucgeanp3 [0oyasold
00°008'€9t (00'e86's) 00'956'S zzvo'e 0Z966'8 (00°008'€9L) ogLrLiLL LLI0E/90 OO 000'EQL 980-0ZLSVE0-SBYLL Pry uchEanp3 jooyasald
96'BEV'Z0E 1] ¥a'0 §0/0£/90 04020 BEV'ZOE S20-0ZL5VEQS60-80 Pl weioid POOUPIYD AUe3
‘PUN4 aNUIAIY [Eroads
1669118 {00 €E8 ve) - - N - - {6 799018} L6 9EEDIL - - 100°205) pUn feloued) 10}
LE'LEL'BET {L6'LEL'6EL) 16'LEL'BET LLIOE/S0 OULIIZ0  ZEL'BEZ 2005605 VEOSBY-L L SUORNQUIUCD AWINDSS [B190S Jy'dl | PRSINGWIY
00708 00208 (00'20%) 60/0€/90 SWLW0  Z0S v10-0Z15-vE0S6760 nayT-Urphy fUOHPPY-PIY UogENOdsSue) |
00°E9K'LS L6VEL'E) (00EIV'LS) €0'82€°8Y LL/08/90 OLLONO  E9VLS VL0025 vEQSEI-LE Piy LogEpiodsuUe] | eauobele))
00'908'2ZE (89°E29'64) {00 '908'2ZE} ZEZEL'E0E LL/02/90 OULKL0  908'TZE S80-0ZLS-VEOSEY-LE Pty weugsnipy
00'6Z8'SS {8LE0v'e) (00'628'sS} 28STY'TS L1/08/90 ULIIZ0  626'SS VE0-0ZLSVESEY-LE Plv Ainseg Raobeaes
00'SEY LY $ (211Z9'9) $ $ $ $ 3 $ {00'BEY ivi) $ €8'918°TEL $ $ L40£790 0L/L0/20 SEV'IVL  $ 680-0ZLSVEOGEL-IL Phy uopeanp3 [eaads feaucbaes
pun4 @reueny
uoREINp3 Jo Wauedsq JES
SSImypuRax] S[qeARIsY 0L/0T/9 Snuarsd | (3qeAedey | seoueed Suesnipy | seimipusdxg [ Twrewy T ioweis (SKemssey Spay] o1 woy Tnewy 1BquInN 15301g 3L wWelboldiGueS JeIS
L2000 Aeisbpng e JojueiSy pauaEqg U2y} RU-27Y Aeabpng ysen (laroepr) o}ang anuasay pouaq JUeIS piEmy ARG 10 Ui
aagenung @ang taud Jo Ieachuiery panajacy 10 wesboly
Wwawheday
OWIW T10Z 0€ ounr 12 souered] 0L0Z 'OF aun[ 12 2ouzieg
1102 ‘0€ aunf papua Jea, jedstd au) Jog
SOUGSISSY {EOURULY AYES J0 SAMYPUBHX3 Jo ANPROS
12141510 TOOHDS GOOMO UM HLHON 40 ALID
g ainpayss

Lab ke



K-5 CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
JUNE 30, 2011

Note 1: General

The accompanying schedule of financial assistance present the activity of all state financial assistance
programs of the Board of Education, City of North Wildwood School District. The Board of Education is
defined in Note 1(A) to the Board's basic financial statements. All state financial assistance received
directly from state agencies, as well as state financial assistance passed through other government
agencies is included on the schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance.

Note 2: Basis of Accounting

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented on the
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are
presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Notes 1(C)
and 1(D) to the Board's basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Note 3: Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis.
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special
revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law
or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not
recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the
exception of the revenue recognition of the last two state aid payments in the current budget year, which is
mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes that payment is not recognized until the
subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state aid payment in the
subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant
accounting budgetary basis, which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the last
state aid payment in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-4.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $40,488.20 for the general
fund and $28,207.46 for the special revenue fund. See the Notes to the Required Supplementary
Information for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the
general and special revenue funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's
basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as presented in the following table:

Federal State TPAF Pension Total
General Fund 3 $ 1,05965911 $ (208,503.00) $ 851,156.11
Special Revenue Fund 369,431.48 270,361.53 639,793.01
Food Service Fund 63,658.94 1,459.11 65,118.05

$ 43309042 $ 1,331479.75 $ _ (208,503.00) $ 1,556,067.17

The On-Behalf Pension Contributions made for the district by the State of New Jersey are recognized as
revenue in the basic financial statements, but are not considered in the major program determination.
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K-5 CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
JUNE 30, 2011
(CONTINUED)

Note 4: Relationship to State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree with the amounts reported in the related state
financial reports.

Note 5: Other

The amount reported as TPAF Pension Contributions represents the amount paid by the State on behalf
of the District for the year ended June 30, 2011. TPAF Social Security Contributions represents the
amount reimbursed by the State for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF
members for the year ended June 30, 2011.

Note 6: Adjustments

The District has instances where a grant period overlaps fiscal years and the grant has not closed out at
the end of the current fiscal year. In addition, local contributions are reflected as adjustments. The
following adjustments were a result of final grant payments being rounded by the grantor, prior
encumbrances being canceled and grantor cost disallowances from a prior period. The total adjustment
was ($1,339.31).
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K-6 CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011

L SUMMARY OF AUDITORS RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified Opinion
Internal control over financial reporting;

1) Material weakness identified? No

2) Significant Deficiencies? None reported

Noncompliance material to basic financial
statements noted? No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
1) Material weakness identified? N/A
2) Significant Deficiencies? N/A

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs: N/A

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
In accordance with section .510(a) of Circular A-133? N/A

Identification of major programs: N/A

Doliar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: N/A

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? N/A
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K-6 CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011
(CONTINUED)

I SUMMARY OF AUDITORS RESULTS (CONTINUED)

State Awards
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and

Type B Programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No

Internaf Control over major programs:
1) Material weakness identified? No
2) Significant Deficiencies? None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unqualified Opinion

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
In accordance with NJ OMB Circular Letter 04-047? No

Identification of major programs:

GMIS Numbers Name of State Program

State Aid Public Cluster
11-495-034-5120-089 Categorical Special Education Aid
11-495-034-5120-084 Security Aid
11-495-034-5120-085 Adjustment Aid
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K-6 CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011
(CONTINUED)

FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WHICH ARE REQUIRED TO BE
REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENTAL
AUDITING STANDARDS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, our audit disclosed no findings relating to the
financial statements that are required to be reported under this section.

FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS

Federal:
Not Applicable
State:

None
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K-7 CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

No prior year findings.
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